
 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
In re: 
 
SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC., 
 

Debtor. 

)
)
)
)
)

Chapter 11 
 
Case No. 07 B 14987 
 
Hon. John H. Squires 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Thursday, November 20, 2008 at 9:30 a.m. or 

as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, we shall appear before the Honorable John H. 

Squires in Courtroom 680 at 219 South Dearborn Street, Chicago, Illinois, or before any other 

judge who may be sitting in his place and stead, and present the attached Motion for Authority 

to Enter into Consent Judgment, at which time and place you may appear if you so desire. 

 
Chicago, Illinois 
November 12, 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Catherine Steege (ARDC #6183529) 
Chris C. Gair (ARDC #6190781) 
Vincent E. Lazar (ARDC #6204916) 
Jenner & Block LLP 
330 N. Wabash Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60611 
Phone: (312) 222-9350 
Fax: (312) 527-0484 
 
Counsel for the Chapter 11 Trustee 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
FREDERICK J. GREDE, not individually, 
but solely as Chapter 11 Trustee for the estate 
of SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, 
INC. 
 
 
By:                /s/  Vincent E. Lazar            
                        One of his attorneys 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                

 



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

  I, Vincent E. Lazar, an attorney, certify that I caused a copy of the Notice of 

Motion and Motion for Authority to Enter into Consent Judgment, to be served upon the 

parties listed on the attached Service List, by First Class United States mail, on November 12, 

2008.   

            /s/  Vincent E. Lazar 
Vincent E. Lazar 
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SERVICE LIST 
In re Sentinel Management Group, Inc. 

Case No. 07-14987 
 

Frederick J. Grede 
Chapter 11 Trustee 
c/o Jenner & Block LLP 
330 N. Wabash Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60611 
Telephone: (312) 840-7811 
Facsimile: (312) 527-0484 
 

Thomas W. Sexton 
General Counsel 
National Futures Association 
300 S. Riverside Dr., Suite 1800 
Chicago, IL  60606 
Telephone:  (312) 781-1413 
Facsimile:  (312) 781-1672 
 

Ronald Barliant 
Kathryn A. Pamenter 
Randall Klein 
William C. Meyers 
Goldberg Kohn 
55 E. Monroe St. 
Suite 3300 
Chicago, IL  60603-5792 
Telephone:  (312) 201-4000 
Facsimile:  (312) 332-2196 
(Attorneys for Sentinel Management Group, Inc.) 
 

Mark A. Berkoff 
Marc I. Fenton 
DLA Piper US LLP 
203 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 1900 
Chicago, IL 60601-1293 
Telephone:  (312) 368-4000 
Facsimile:  (312) 236-7516  
(Attorneys for Official Unsecured Creditors’ 
Committee) 
 

William T. Neary 
Roman Sukley 
Gretchen Silver 
United States Trustee 
Dirksen Federal Courthouse 
219 S. Deraborn Street, Room 873 
Chicago, IL  60604 
Telephone:  (312) 886-5785 
Facsimile:  (312) 886-5794  

Geoffrey S. Goodman 
Scott E. Early 
Foley & Lardner LLP 
321 N. Clark St. 
Suite 2800 
Chicago, IL  60610 
Telephone:  (312) 832-4500 
Facsimile:  (312) 832-4700 
(Attorneys for Alaron FX, Inc., Alaron Holdings Corp., 
Alaron Trading Corp., Frontier Futures, Inc.) 
 

Angela D. Dodd 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
175 W. Jackson Blvd., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL  60604 
Telephone:  (312) 353-7400 
Facsimile:  (312) 353-7398 
 

Sean T. Scott 
Mayer Brown LLP 
71 S. Wacker Dr. 
Chicago, IL  60606 
Telephone:  (312) 701-8310 
Facsimile:  (312) 706-8482 
(Attorney for the Bank of New York) 
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George G. Wilder 
Bella Rozenberg 
Bradford M. Berry 
Commodity Futures Trading Commission 
1152 21st St., N.W. 
Washington, DC  20581 
Telephone:  (202) 418-5142 
Facsimile:  (202) 418-5524 
 

John P. Sieger 
Andrew L. Wool 
Peter A. Siddiqui 
Christian T. Kemnitz 
Arthur W. Hahn 
Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP 
525 W. Monroe St. 
Chicago, IL  60661-3693 
Telephone:  (312) 902-5200 
Facsimile:  (312) 902-1061 
(Attorneys for Discus Master Limited) 
 

Robert J. Trizna 
Jeffrey David Barclay 
James J. McNamara 
David M. Giangrossi 
Schuyler Roche & Zwirner, P.C. 
130 E. Randolph St. 
Suite 3800 
Chicago, IL  60601 
Telephone:  (312) 565-2400 
Facsimile:  (312) 565-8300 
(Attorneys for BC Capital Fund A, LLC, BC Capital 
Fund B, LLC, Blueprint Partners LP, Dighton UTG 
Fund SPC, Leviathan Diversified Fund 3XL) 
 

Jill L. Murch 
Stephen P. Bedell 
Thomas P. Krebs 
Foley & Lardner LLP 
321 N. Clark St. 
Suite 2800 
Chicago, IL  60610 
Telephone:  (312) 832-4500 
Facsimile:  (312) 832-4700 
(Attorneys for FC Stone LLC, Rand Financial Services, 
Inc.) 
 

Stephen P. Bedell 
Jill L. Murch 
Foley & Lardner LLP 
321 North Clark Street, Ste. 2800 
Chicago, IL 60610-4714 
Telephone:  (312) 832-4500 
Facsimile:  (312) 832-4700 
(Attorney for Cadent Financial Services, LLC and Fortis 
Clearing Americas, LLC.) 
 

David A. Genelly 
James C. Conley 
Vanasco Genelly & Miller 
33 N. LaSalle St. 
Suite 2200 
Chicago, IL  60602 
Telephone:  (312) 786-5100 
Facsimile:  (312) 786-5111 
(Attorneys for Kotke Associates, LLC) 
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Nathan F. Coco 
Paul E. Chronis 
Ryan T. Schultz 
McDermott Will & Emery LLP 
227 W. Monroe 
Chicago, IL  60606 
Telephone:  (312) 372-2000 
Facsimile:  (312) 984-7700 
(Attorneys for Country Hedging, Inc.) 
 

Robert M. Fishman 
Ira Bodenstein 
Janice A. Alwin 
Shaw Gussis Fishman Glantz Wolfson & 
Towbin LLC 
321 N. Clark Street, Suite 800 
Chicago, IL 60610 
Telephone:  (312) 541-0151 
Facsimile:  (312) 980-3888 
(Attorneys for Robb Evans & Associates LLC, as 
temporary receiver of Lake Shore Asset Management, 
Ltd., et al.) 
 

Robert B. Christie 
Henderson & Lyman 
175 W. Jackson 
Suite 240 
Chicago, IL  60604 
Telephone:  (312) 986-6957 
Facsimile:  (312) 986-6961 
(Attorney for Crossland Customer Segregated a/k/a 
Crossland LLC) 
 

Mark W. Page 
Kelley Drye & Warren LLP 
333 W. Wacker Dr. 
No. 2600 
Chicago, IL  60606 
Telephone:  (312) 857-7073 
Facsimile:  (312) 857-7095 
(Attorney for Sentinel Bank & Trust, Ltd., Sentinel U.S. 
Liquidity Fund, Ltd.) 
 

Timothy Casey 
Drinker Biddle Gardner Carton 
191 N. Wacker Dr. 
Suite 3700 
Chicago, IL  60606-1698 
Telephone:  (312) 569-1000  
Facsimile:  (312) 569-3000 
(Attorney for Penson GHCO) 

Jason M. Torf 
J. Mark Fisher 
Schiff Hardin 
6600 Sears Tower 
Chicago, IL  60606-6473 
Telephone:  (312) 258-5500 
Facsimile:  (312) 258-5600 
(Attorneys for Velocity Futures) 
 

Robert V. Shannon 
Bell Boyd & Lloyd LLP 
70 W. Madison St. 
Chicago, IL  60602 
Telephone:  (312) 807-4297 
Facsimile:  (312) 827-2494 
(Attorney for Vision Financial Market LLC, IFX) 
 

Richard M. Bendix 
Morgan S. Smith 
Dykema Gossett PLLC 
10 S. Wacker Drive 
Suite 2300 
Chicago, IL 60606 
Telephone:  (312) 876-1700 
Facsimile:   (312) 876-1155 
(Attorneys for Stone Capital Group, Inc., Cedar Stone, 
LLC, Ravinia Investors LLC,Ravinia Ivestors LLC 
Profit Sharing Plan) 
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Beckett & Lee LLP 
P.O. Box 3001 
Malvern, PA 19355-0701 
Telephone:  (610) 644-7800 
Facsimile:  (610) 993-8493 
(Attorney for American Express Bank FSB) 
 

Lawrence B. Finer 
Stanley Z. Finer 
2100 N. Racine Avenue #2G 
Chicago, IL 60614 
Telephone:  (773) 935-5051 
 

Jerry Hirsch 
1676 Linden Ave. 
Highland Park, IL 60035 
Telephone:  (847) 432-7771 
Facsimile:  (847) 433-7766 
(President, Stone Capital Group, Inc.) 

Tom Stone 
Stone Capital Group, Inc. 
326 Cedar Ave. 
Highland Park, IL 60035-4140 
Telephone:  (847) 927-6700 
Facsimile:  (847) 433-3251 
 

Abraham Brustein 
Paul A. Greco 
Ira P. Goldberg 
Di Monte & Lizak LLC 
216 West Higgins Road 
Park Ridge, IL 60068 
Telephone:  (847) 698-9600 
Facsimile:  (847) 698-9623 
(Attorney for Charles Mosley) 
 

Michael M. Eidelman 
Stephanie K. Hor 
Vedder Price Kaufman & Kammholz, P.C. 
222 N. LaSalle Street 
Chicago, IL 60601 
Telephone:  (312) 609-7500 
Facsimile:  (312) 609-5005 
(Attorney for Ernst & Young, as Receiver for Lake 
Shore Alternative Financial Asset Corporation Limited 
and Lake Shore Alternative Financial Asset Corporation 
2006 Limited) 
 

Gennice D. Brickhouse 
Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation 
1200 K Street, NW, Suite 340 
Washington, DC 20005-4026 
Telephone:  (202) 326-4020, ext. 3446 
Facsimile:  (202) 326-4112 
(Attorney for PBGC) 
 

Susheel Kirpalani 
Joseph G. Minias 
James C. Tecce 
Benjamin Finestone 
Quinn Emanuel Urquhart Oliver & Hedges, 
LLP 
51 Madison Avenue, 22nd Floor 
New York, NY 10010 
Telephone:  (212) 849-7000 
Facsimile:  (212) 849-7100  
(Attorneys for Official Unsecured Creditors’ 
Committee) 
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Jennifer B. Herzog 
Timothy F. Nixon 
Godfrey & Kahn, S.C. 
780 North Water Street 
Milwaukee, WI 53202-3590 
Telephone:  (414) 287-9501 
Facsimile:  (414) 273-5198 
(Attorneys for Fall River capital LLC) 

Brian S. Hermann 
Stephen J. Shimshak 
Moses Silverman 
Margaret A. Phillips 
Paul Weiss Rifkind Wharton & Garrison LLP 
1285 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, NY 10019-6064 
Telephone:  (212) 373-3000 
Facsimile:  (212) 757-3990 
(Attorneys for Discus Master Limited) 
 

N Neville Reid 
Sajida Mahdi Ali 
Michael W. Ott 
Mayer Brown LLP 
71 S. Wacker Drive 
Chicago, IL 6060 
Telephone:  (312) 782-0600 
Facsimile:  (312) 701-7711  
(Attorneys for Cantor Fitgerald & Co.) 
 

R. Scott Alsterda 
Ungaretti & Harris LLP 
3500 Three First National Plaza 
70 West Madison 
Chicago, IL 60602 
Telephone:  (312) 977-9203 
Facsimile:  (312) 977-4405 
(Attorneys for AlphaMosaic US LLC) 

Brian Trust 
Frederick D. Hyman 
Mayer Brown LLP 
1675 Broadway 
New York, NY 10019-5820 
Telephone:  (212) 506-2500 
Facsimile:  (212) 262-1910 
(Attorney for the Bank of New York) 
 

Robert G. Fracasso 
Shutts & Bowen LLP 
201 S. Biscayne Blvd. 
1500 Miami Center 
Miami, FL 33131 
Telephone:  (305) 358-6300 
Facsimile:  (305) 347-7802 
(Attorney for Compania de Jesus de Colombia, et. al.) 
 

Howard L. Adelman 
Erich S. Buck 
Nathan Q. Rugg  
Adelman & Gettleman, Ltd. 
53 West Jackson Boulevard, Suite 1050 
Chicago, Illinois 60604-3701 
Telephone: (312) 435-1050 
Facsimile: (312) 435-1059  

Jeff J. Marwill 
Stephen J. Senderowitz 
Peter J. Young 
Winston & Strawn, LLP 
35 W. Wacker Drive 
Chicago, IL 60601 
Telephone: (312) 558-5600 
Facsimile: (312) 558-5700 
(Attorney for Citadel Equity Fund, Ltd.) 
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Bryan Krakauer 
Dennis M. Twomey 
Sidley Austin LLP 
One South Dearborn 
Chicago, IL 60603 
Telephone:  (312) 853-7000 
Facsimile:  (312) 853-7036 
(Attorneys for Sentinel Creditor Group) 

Stephen P. Bedell 
Thomas P. Krebs 
William J. McKenna 
Foley & Lardner LLP 
321 N. Clark St. 
Suite 2800 
Chicago, IL  60610 
Telephone:  (312) 832-4500 
Facsimile:  (312) 832-4700 
(Attorneys for Velocity Futures, L.P.) 
 

Andrea Robin Wood 
Eric M. Phillips 
James Aaron Davidson 
John E. Birkenheier 
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
175 W. Jackson Blvd., Suite 900 
Chicago, IL  60604 
 

 

  
 



 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
In re: 

SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, 
INC., 

   Debtor. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Chapter 11 
 
Case No. 07 B 14987 
 
Hon. John H. Squires  

 
MOTION FOR AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO CONSENT JUDGMENT  

 
Frederick J. Grede, the chapter 11 trustee (the “Trustee”) for the estate (the “Estate”) of 

Sentinel Management Group, Inc. (the “Debtor” or “Sentinel”), by and through his undersigned 

counsel, hereby respectfully requests this Court’s approval, pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 363(b) and 

Rule 9019 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure, to enter into the attached “Consent of 

Defendant Sentinel Management Group, Inc.” and “Final Judgment as to Defendant Sentinel 

Management Group Inc.”, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Consent and 

Final Judgment”) on behalf of Sentinel in the case United States Securities and Exchange 

Commission v. Sentinel Management Group, Inc., Eric A. Bloom, and Charles K. Mosley, Case 

No. 07 C 4684 (the “SEC Litigation”), and states:  

1. On August 17, 2007 (the “Petition Date”), the Debtor filed a voluntary petition for 

relief under chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the 

United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division (the 

“Bankruptcy Court”).  

2. On August 20, 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) filed 

the SEC Litigation in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois (the 

“District Court”) against Sentinel, seeking orders of preliminary and permanent injunction, 
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disgorgement, and civil fines and penalties for Sentinel’s alleged violations of various provisions 

of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and other rules and regulations.  

3. On August 23, 2007, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order granting the Debtor’s 

motion for the appointment of a Chapter 11 trustee and, on August 29, 2007, the Trustee was 

appointed as the chapter 11 trustee of the Debtor by the United States Trustee.  He has accepted 

his appointment, and is acting, duly qualified, as Trustee of the Debtor. 

4. On September 24, 2007, the District Court entered an Agreed Order of 

Preliminary Injunction and Other Relief in the SEC Litigation.  On June 16, 2008, the SEC filed 

its First Amended Complaint in the SEC Litigation, adding Eric A. Bloom and Charles K. 

Mosley as defendants and adding allegations of violations of other federal securities laws, rules, 

and regulations.     

5. As summarized below, without admitting or denying the allegations of the First 

Amended Complaint filed in the SEC Litigation (except as to personal and subject matter 

jurisdiction, which the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, will admit), the Trustee, on behalf of 

Sentinel, has agreed to a resolution with the SEC, subject to this Court’s approval, that includes 

the following provisions: 

• Sentinel consents to entry of the Consent and Final Judgment in the SEC Litigation, 

permanently restraining and enjoining Sentinel from violating the Securities Act, the 

Securities Exchange Act, and the Investment Advisors Act.  

• The Trustee’s fulfillment of his responsibilities and duties as Chapter 11 Trustee and 

administration of Sentinel’s bankruptcy estate under the laws of the United States, the 

Bankruptcy Code and/or the orders of the United States Bankruptcy Court, including but 

not limited to those duties related to the maintenance, preservation, marshalling and 
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distribution of Sentinel assets in accordance with the above authority, including any plan 

of liquidation approved by the Court, will not be prohibited, restricted or restrained by the 

Consent and Final Judgment.  Nothing in the Consent or Final Judgment will limit or 

constrain the Trustee’s fulfillment of or the protections he is afforded under those laws.  

6. Section 363(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code provides that a “trustee, after notice 

and a hearing, may use, sell, or lease, other than in the ordinary course of business, property of 

the estate.”  11 U.S.C. § 363(b)(1).  The bankruptcy court can approve a transaction which is 

outside the ordinary course of business if the trustee has an “articulated business justification.”  

See Fulton State Bank v. Schipper (In re Schipper), 933 F.2d 513, 515 (7th Cir. 1991) (citing In 

re Continental Air Lines, 780 F.2d 1223, 1226 (5th Cir.1986)). 

7. The Trustee seeks the approval of this Court to enter into the Consent and Final 

Judgment with the SEC, which the Trustee believes may constitute a transaction outside the 

ordinary course of business.  Specifically, the Consent and Final Judgment will permanently 

restrain and enjoin Sentinel from violating the Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act, and 

the Investment Advisors Act.  Given the extraordinary nature of this action, the Trustee seeks 

this Court’s approval, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, of the Consent and Final 

Judgment.  Since Sentinel has ceased all operations of Sentinel and the Trustee is winding up 

Sentinel’s remaining business, the Trustee submits that entry of the Consent and Final Judgment, 

which will fully and finally settle the SEC Litigation against Sentinel without any further cost to 

the estate or negative impact upon Sentinel’s creditors, is in the best interests of the estate and its 

creditors.  Therefore, the Trustee seeks this Court’s authority to enter into the Consent and Final 

Judgment. 
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8. Moreover, to the extent that the Consent and Final Judgment constitutes a 

settlement, Bankruptcy Rule 9019(a) authorizes this Court, after a hearing on appropriate notice, 

to approve a compromise or a settlement so long as “the settlement is in the best interests of the 

estate.”  In re Andreuccetti, 975 F.2d 413, 421 (7th Cir. 1992); In re Energy Co-op, Inc., 886 

F.2d 921, 926-27 (7th Cir. 1989).  To determine whether a settlement is in the best interests of 

the estate, the Court should consider the risks of the litigation, the cost of the litigation and any 

delay associated with continuing the litigation.  Id.  Approval of a settlement is committed to the 

sound discretion of the court.  Id.  Though a court should never simply “rubber stamp” a trustee’s 

settlement, a court should refuse to authorize a settlement only if it “falls below the lowest point 

in the range of reasonableness.”  Energy Co-op, 886 F.2d at 929.   

9. The proposed settlement is in the best interests of this estate and its creditors.  The 

proposed settlement represents a fair and appropriate resolution of the SEC Litigation after one 

considers the status of Sentinel’s business and the interests of the estate and creditors in a prompt 

resolution.  Accordingly, the Trustee requests this Court’s approval to enter into the attached 

Consent and Final Judgment. 

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. § 202.5(f), the Consent and Final Judgment resolve to 

the extent specified therein only the claims asserted against Sentinel in the SEC Litigation.  

Thus, nothing in the Consent and Final Judgment will be given any preclusive effect in any 

proceeding other than proceedings initiated by the SEC or that involve disciplinary, registration 

or disqualification proceedings by the SEC, a self-regulatory organization, licensing board or 

other regulatory organization.  See, e.g., Levinson v. United States, 969 F.2d 260, 264 (7th Cir. 

1992) (“[R]es judicata and collateral estoppel ‘do not apply where, as here, the issues or causes 

of action sought to be precluded in a subsequent proceeding were allegedly determined in a 
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stipulation or a judgment by consent.’”); E.E.O.C. v. City of Chicago, 1994 WL 457229, at *2 

(N.D. Ill. Aug. 19, 1994) (stipulation not given preclusive effect in other proceedings where, 

among other things, it was entered for “the sole purpose of resolving the claim(s) referred to 

[t]herein”); Mishkin v. Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co., 1988 WL 391648, at *1 (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 

7, 1988) (consent decree has no evidentiary or preclusive effect in subsequent proceeding).   

11. Moreover, the Consent and Final Judgment, and any references thereto, are not 

admissible in any proceeding other than proceedings initiated by the SEC or that involve 

disciplinary, registration or disqualification proceedings by the SEC, a self-regulatory 

organization, licensing board or other regulatory organization.  See Fed. R. Evid. 408(a); Option 

Resource Group v. Chambers Dev. Co., 967 F. Supp. 846, 850 (W.D. Pa. 1996) (“[E]vidence 

pertaining to the fact of compromise and settlement of the SEC administrative proceedings and 

the Consent and Final Judgment issued in the related civil proceeding in this Court must be 

excluded under Rule 408, which includes statements and conduct made in the course of 

compromise negotiations.”); In re Cenco Inc. Secs. Litig., 601 F. Supp. 336, 337 n.3 (N.D. Ill. 

Nov. 26, 1984) (stipulation “analogous to a consent decree, issued by the SEC as a product of a 

settlement with [plaintiff] in which [plaintiff] did not admit or deny any of the [allegations]” not 

admissible under Rule 408).   

12. The Trustee also requests that the court find that cause exists to shorten and limit 

notice to that already given.  The Trustee has served notice of the proposed settlement on all 

counsel on the official service list.  The cost of sending notice to all of the Debtor’s creditors and 

other parties that might be entitled to notice under Rule 2002 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy 

Procedure would be prohibitive.  Given the nature of the settlement involved, the Trustee 

requests that the Court find that cause exists to shorten and limit notice. 
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WHEREFORE, the Trustee respectfully requests this Court’s approval to enter into the 

attached Consent and Final Judgment and grant such other relief as may be just.   

Dated: Chicago, Illinois   Respectfully submitted, 
 November 12, 2008 
      FREDERICK J. GREDE, not individually, but  
      solely as chapter 11 trustee for the estate of  
      SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC.    
 
      By:   /s/ Vincent E. Lazar               
        One of His Attorneys 
 
Catherine Steege (ARDC #6183529) 
Chris C. Gair (ARDC #6190781) 
Vincent E. Lazar (ARDC #6204916) 
Jenner & Block LLP 
330 N. Wabash Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60611 
Phone: (312) 222-9350 
Fax: (312) 527-0484 
 
Counsel for the Chapter 11 Trustee 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
____________________________________ 
       : 
UNITED STATES SECURITIES   : 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,  : 
       : 
   Plaintiff,   : 
       : CASE NO. 07 C 4684 
       : 
       : Judge Kocoras 
  v.     :  
       : Magistrate Judge Mason 
       : 

:  
SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC., : 
ERIC A. BLOOM, AND CHARLES K.  : 
MOSLEY,      :     
       : 
   Defendants.   : 
____________________________________ : 
 

CONSENT OF DEFENDANT SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. 
 

1. Frederick J. Grede, as Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Trustee (the “Trustee”) of 

Sentinel Management Group, Inc. (“Sentinel”) acknowledges having been served with 

the complaint in this action, enters a general appearance, and admits the Court’s 

jurisdiction over Sentinel and over the subject matter of this action. 

2. Without admitting or denying the allegations of the complaint (except as 

to personal and subject matter jurisdiction, which the Trustee admits on behalf of 

Sentinel), the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, hereby consents to the entry of the final 

judgment in the form attached hereto (“Final Judgment") and incorporated by reference 

herein, which, among other things, permanently restrains and enjoins Sentinel from 

violation of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)], Section 



 

 

10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 [15 U.S.C. 9 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 

C.F.R. § 9240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder, and Sections 206(1), 206(2) and 206(4) of 

the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(1), 80b-6(2) and 80b-6(4)], and 

Rule 206 (4)-2 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. 275.206(4)-2].  The Trustee, on behalf 

of Sentinel, consents to the Final Judgment with the express understanding that the 

Trustee is not subject to any enforcement remedy established by the Judgment in his 

individual capacity.  

3. Nothing in the Consent or Final Judgment is intended to limit or constrain 

the Trustee’s fulfillment of his responsibilities and duties as Chapter 11 Trustee under the 

laws of the United States, the Bankruptcy Code and/or the orders of the United States 

Bankruptcy Court, including but not limited to those duties related to the maintenance, 

preservation, marshalling and distribution of Sentinel assets in accordance with the above 

authority, including any plan of liquidation approved by the Court or to limit the 

protections he is afforded under those laws.  The actions, agreements, consents, and 

waivers of the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, as set forth herein are taken by the Trustee 

in accordance with and subject to his authority as Chapter 11 Trustee. 

4. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, waives the entry of findings of fact and 

conclusions of law pursuant to Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

5. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, waives the right, if any, to a jury trial 

and to appeal from the entry of the Final Judgment. 

6. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, enters into this Consent voluntarily and 

represents that no threats, offers, promises, or inducements of any kind have been made 



 

 

by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of the 

Commission to induce the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, to enter into this Consent. 

7. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, agrees that this Consent shall be 

incorporated into the Final Judgment with the same force and effect as if fully set forth 

therein. 

8. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, will not oppose the enforcement of the 

Final Judgment on the ground, if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and hereby waive any objection based thereon. 

9. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, waives service of the Final Judgment 

and agrees that entry of the Final Judgment by the Court and filing with the Clerk of the 

Court will constitute notice to the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, of its terms and 

conditions.  The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, further agrees to provide counsel for the 

Commission, within thirty days after the Final Judgment is filed with the Clerk of the 

Court, with an affidavit or declaration stating that the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, has 

received and read a copy of the Final Judgment. 

10. Consistent with 17 C.F.R. § 202.5(f), this Consent resolves to the extent 

specified herein only the claims asserted against Sentinel in this civil proceeding.  The 

Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, acknowledges that no promise or representation has been 

made by the Commission or any member, officer, employee, agent, or representative of 

the Commission with regard to any criminal liability that may have arisen or may arise 

from the facts underlying this action or immunity from any such criminal liability.  The 

Trustee waives any claim of Double Jeopardy on behalf of Sentinel based upon the 

settlement of this proceeding, including the imposition of any remedy or civil penalty 



 

 

herein.  The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, further acknowledges that the Court's entry of 

a permanent injunction may have collateral consequences under federal or state law and 

the rules and regulations of self-regulatory organizations, licensing boards, and other 

regulatory organizations, including a disciplinary, registration, or disqualification 

proceeding with respect to membership or participation in, or association with a member 

of, a self-regulatory organization.  This statutory disqualification has consequences that 

are separate from any sanction imposed in an administrative proceeding.  In addition, in 

any disciplinary proceeding before the Commission based on the entry of the injunction 

in this action, the Trustee understands that the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, shall not be 

permitted to contest the factual allegations of the complaint in this action. 

11. The Trustee understands the Commission's policy "not to permit a 

defendant or respondent to consent to a judgment or order that imposes a sanction while 

denying the allegation in the complaint or order for proceedings."  17 C.F.R. § 202.5.  In 

compliance with this policy, the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, agrees: (i) not to take any 

action or to make or permit to be made any public statement denying, directly or 

indirectly, any allegation in the complaint or creating the impression that the complaint is 

without factual basis; and (ii) that upon the filing of this Consent, any papers in this 

action shall be deemed withdrawn to the extent that they deny any allegation in the 

complaint.  If Sentinel breaches this agreement, the Commission may petition the Court 

to vacate the Final Judgment and restore this action to its active docket.  Nothing in this 

paragraph or Consent affects the Trustee’s: (i) testimonial obligations; or (ii) right to take 

legal or factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings in which the Commission 

is not a party. 



 

 

12. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, hereby waives any rights under the 

Equal Access to Justice Act, the Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 

1996, or any other provision of law to seek from the United States, or any agency, or any 

official of the United States acting in his or her capacity, directly or indirectly, 

reimbursement of attorney’s fees or other fees, expenses, or costs expended by the 

Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, to defend against this action.  For these purposes, agrees 

that the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, is not the prevailing party in this action since the 

parties have reached a good faith settlement. 

13. In connection with this action and any related judicial or administrative 

proceeding or investigation commenced by the Commission or to which the Commission 

is a party, the Trustee, in his capacity as trustee of Sentinel, (i) will accept service by mail 

or facsimile transmission of notices or subpoenas issued by the Commission for 

documents or testimony at depositions, hearings, or trials, or in connection with any 

related investigation by Commission staff; (ii) appoints the Trustee’s undersigned 

attorney as agent to receive service of such notices and subpoenas; (iii) with respect to 

such notices and subpoenas, waives the territorial limits on service contained in Rule 45 

of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and any applicable local rules, provided that the 

party requesting the testimony reimburses travel, lodging, and subsistence expenses at the 

then-prevailing U.S. Government per diem rates; and (iv) consents to personal jurisdiction 

over Sentinel in any United States District Court for purposes of enforcing any such 

subpoena. 

14. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, agrees that the Commission may 

present the Final Judgment to the Court for signature and entry without further notice. 



 

 

15. The Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, agrees that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction over this matter for the purpose of enforcing the terms of the Final Judgment. 

 
 

Dated:            
  

 
 
Sentinel Management Group, Inc. 
By:____________________________ 
Frederick J. Grede, as Chapter 11 Trustee for Sentinel Management Group, Inc. 
c/o Jenner & Block LLP 
330 N. Wabash Ave. 
Chicago, IL 60611-7603 
 
   
STATE OF _______   } 
     } SS: 
COUNTY OF _____   } 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of _______, 
2008, by __________________, who _____ is personally known to me or _____ who has 
produced a _______________ driver’s license as identification and who did take an oath. 

  
Notary Public  
State of _____________  
Commission Number:  
Commission Expiration:  
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
                       
J. Kevin McCall 
Jenner & Block LLP 
Counsel to Frederick J. Grede, as Chapter 11 Trustee for Sentinel Management Group, 
Inc. 
Date: 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
____________________________________ 
       : 
UNITED STATES SECURITIES   : 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,  : 
       : 
   Plaintiff,   : 
       : CASE NO. 07 C 4684 
       : 
       : Judge Kocoras 
  v.     :  
       : Magistrate Judge Mason 
       : 

:  
SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC., : 
ERIC A. BLOOM, AND CHARLES K.  : 
MOSLEY,      :      
       : 
   Defendants.   : 
____________________________________ : 
 
 
 

FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. 
 

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint against Defendant 

Sentinel Management Group, Inc. (“Sentinel”); Sentinel having entered a general appearance and 

consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over Sentinel and the subject matter of this action; Frederick 

J.. Grede, in his capacity as Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Trustee of Sentinel (the “Trustee”), and not 

personally, having the authority to enter into and having executed the Consent of Defendant 

Sentinel Management Group, Inc. (the “Consent”), which is incorporated herein; and the Trustee 

having consented to entry of this Final Judgment against Sentinel on behalf of Sentinel, without 

admitting or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction), having waived 

findings of fact and conclusions of law, and having waived any right to appeal from this Final 
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Judgment: 

I. 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Sentinel and Sentinel's 

agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation with them 

who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise, are permanently 

restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section 10(b) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. 

§ 240.10b-5], by using any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of 

any facility of any national securities exchange, in connection with the purchase or sale of any 

security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact 

 necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances 

 under which they were made, not misleading; or 

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would 

 operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person. 

II. 

 IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Sentinel and 

Sentinel's agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation 

with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise, are 

permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 [15 

U.S.C. § 77q(a)] in the offer or sale of any security by the use of any means or instruments of 

transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the mails, directly or 
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indirectly: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a material fact  or 

any omission of a material fact necessary in order to make the statements  made, in light of 

the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or 

 (c) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or  

 would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser. 

III. 
 

 IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Sentinel and 

Sentinel’s agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation 

with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise, are 

permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Investment 

Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6], by the use of any means or 

instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, 

directly or indirectly: 

(a) employing any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud any client or prospective client; or 

(b) engaging in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates as a fraud or 

deceit upon any client or prospective client. 

IV. 
 

 IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Sentinel and 

Sentinel’s agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation 

with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal service or otherwise, are 

permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 206(4) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. 
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§ 80b-6(4)], and Rule 206 (4)-2 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. 275.206(4)-2], by the use of 

any means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by the use 

of the mails, directly or indirectly, engaging in acts, practices, or course of business which were 

fraudulent, deceptive or manipulative, including having custody of client funds or securities 

without a qualified custodian maintaining those funds or securities in either a separate account for 

each client under that client’s name or in accounts that contain only the clients’ funds and securities 

under such persons’ or entities’ name as agent or trustee for the clients. 

V. 
 

 IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent 

is incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein, and that Sentinel 

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein.  Nothing in the Consent 

or Final Judgment is intended to limit or constrain the Trustee’s fulfillment of his responsibilities 

and duties as Chapter 11 Trustee under the laws of the United States, the Bankruptcy Code and/or 

the orders of the United States Bankruptcy Court, including but not limited to those duties related 

to the maintenance, preservation, marshalling and distribution of Sentinel assets in accordance with 

the above authority, including any plan of liquidation approved by the Court or to limit the 

protections he is afforded under those laws.  The actions, agreements, consents, and waivers of 

Sentinel as set forth herein are taken by the Trustee in accordance with and subject to his authority 

as Chapter 11 Trustee. 
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VI. 
 

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing of the terms of this Final Judgment. 

VII.  
 
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without further notice. 

 
Dated:  ______________, _____ 

____________________________________ 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 

 
 



 

 

IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
In re: 

SENTINEL MANAGEMENT GROUP, 
INC.,  

   Debtor. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Chapter 11 
 
Case No. 07 B 14987 
 
Hon. John H. Squires  

 
ORDER AUTHORIZING TRUSTEE TO ENTER INTO CONSENT JUDGMENT 

 
THIS MATTER coming to be heard upon the Trustee’s Motion for Authority to Enter 

Into Consent Judgment (the “Motion”); due and proper notice of the Motion having been given; 

it appearing to the Court that entry into the Consent and Final Judgment is in the best interests 

of the Debtor’s estate and its creditors; and the Court having jurisdiction over this core 

proceeding and being fully advised in the premises; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

A. The Motion is granted in its entirety. 

B. Any and all responses to the Motion, including reservations of rights, unless 

previously withdrawn or settled, are overruled. 

C. The proposed settlement is in the best interests of this estate and its creditors.  The 

Consent and Final Judgment will not be given any preclusive effect or otherwise be admissible 

in any proceeding other than proceedings initiated by the SEC or that involve disciplinary, 

registration or disqualification proceedings by the SEC, a self-regulatory organization, licensing 

board or other regulatory organization.  E.E.O.C. v. City of Chicago, 1994 WL 457229, at *2 

(N.D. Ill. Aug. 19, 1994); Fed. R. Evid. 408; Option Resource Group v. Chambers Dev. Co., 

967 F. Supp. 846, 850 (W.D. Pa. 1996).       
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D. The Trustee’s fulfillment of his responsibilities and duties as Chapter 11 Trustee 

and administration of Sentinel’s bankruptcy estate under the laws of the United States, the 

Bankruptcy Code and/or the orders of the United States Bankruptcy Court, including but not 

limited to those duties related to the maintenance, preservation, marshalling and distribution of 

Sentinel assets in accordance with the above authority, including any plan of liquidation 

approved by the Court, will not be prohibited, restricted or restrained by the Consent and Final 

Judgment.  Nothing in the Consent or Final Judgment is intended to limit or constrain the 

Trustee’s fulfillment of his or to limit the protections he is afforded under those laws.  

E. Based on the above, the Trustee, on behalf of Sentinel, is hereby authorized to 

enter into the Consent and Final Judgment in United States Securities and Exchange 

Commission v. Sentinel Management Group, Inc., Eric A. Bloom, and Charles K. Mosley, Case 

No. 07 C 4684.   

 ENTER: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
  UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY JUDGE 

 


